Summons to Meeting
Wednesday 4 September 2019

Audit Committee
Thursday 12 September 2019, 2.00 pm
Council Chamber, Allerdale House
Membership:
Councillor Janet King (Chair)
Councillor Carole Armstrong
Councillor John Colhoun
Councillor Jim Lister

Councillor Alan Tyson (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Mary Bainbridge
Councillor Adrian Kirkbride

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions
or queries contact Lee Jardine on 01900 702502.

Agenda
1.

Minutes (Pages 1 - 2)
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 30 July 2019

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Declaration of Interests
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4.

Questions
To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by
electronic mail no later than 5.00 pm, 2 working days before the meeting.

5.

Assurance, Risk and Audit Report for the Quarter Ending 30 June 2019
(Pages 3 - 44)

6.

Treasury Management Operation Annual Report 2018/19 (Pages 45 - 70)

7.

Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 (Pages 71 - 84)

8.

Progress Report 2019/20 (Pages 85 - 90)

Chief Executive

Date of Next Meeting:
Tuesday 26 November 2019, 10.00 am
Allerdale House, Workington

Agenda Item 1
At a meeting of the Audit Committee held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House,
Workington on Tuesday 30 July 2019 at 9.30 am
Members
Councillor Janet King (Chair)
Councillor Carole Armstrong
Councillor Jim Lister

Councillor Alan Tyson (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Mary Bainbridge

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor John Colhoun and Councillor
Adrian Kirkbride
Staff Present
L Jardine, B Lennox and S Sewell
Also Present
J Farrar and A Pieri
94.

Minutes
The minutes of the meeting held on 30 July 2019 were signed as a correct
record.

95.

Declaration of Interests
None Declared

96.

Questions
None Received

97.

Annual Governance Statement 2018/19
The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) was presented by the Head of
Governance and Regulatory Services.
The draft Annual Governance Statement was approved by members on 25th
June 2019. Members were advised of the minor amendments which have been
made, in consultation with Grant Thornton LLP.
Agreed
That the contents of the Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 be approved.

98.

Statement of Accounts 2018/19
The Financial Services Manager submitted the 2018/19 Statement of Accounts
for consideration and approval.

Page 1

Members were advised that the accounts had been reviewed by the Section
151 officer and that if the Statement of Accounts were approved by members,
Grant Thornton could issue their opinion.
The Financial Services Manager delivered a presentation to members on the
Statement of Account, the presentation included,






The Narrative Report
Accounting Policies
Single Entity Financial Statements
Collection Fund and Group Accounts
Changes to Unaudited Statements

The Financial Services Manager then answered questions from members in
relation to pension deficit, cash reserves and borrowing.
Resolved
That the Statement of Accounts for 2018/19 be approved.
99.

Audit Findings Report
Grant Thornton submitted a findings report highlighting the key matters arising
from the audit of the Council’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019.
J Farrar and A Pieri, Grant Thornton presented Members with a summary of the
report.
Members noted the report.

100.

Letter of Representation 2018/19
The Head of Financial Services presented to members the Letter of
Representation, made in connection with the audit of the council’s 2018/19
Statement of Accounts.
Members approved the Letter of Representation.
Resolved
That the Letter of Representation 2018/19 be approved.

The meeting closed at 11.15 am

Page 2

Allerdale Borough Council

Agenda Item 5

Audit Committee Meeting 12 September 2019
Assurance, Risk and Audit Report for the Quarter Ending 30 June 2019
The Reason for the Decision

To inform the Committee of the work performed
by the Assurance, Risk and Audit Team in the
first quarter of the financial year 2019/20.

Summary of options considered

N/A

Recommendations

1. That the report is accepted subject to any
additional information that the committee may
require.
2. That the self-assessment is considered.

Financial / Resource Implications

As outlined in the report.

Legal Implications

Acceptance of this report has no legal
implications.

Community Safety Implications

Acceptance of this report has no community
safety implications.

Health and Safety and Risk
Management Implications

Acceptance of this report has no Health and
Safety implications. Consideration should be
given to the activities reported and how they
contribute to the organisations Risk Management
Framework.

Equality Duty considered / Impact
Assessment completed

Equality is considered during the Assurance, Risk
and Audit activities.

Wards Affected

All.

The contribution this decision would
make to the Council’s priorities

Acceptance of the Assurance, Risk and Audit
Team’s work provides a direct and indirect
contribution to the achievement of the Council’s
priorities, in accordance with the Assurance, Risk
and Audit Service Plan.

Is this a Key Decision

No

Portfolio Holder

Councillor John Cook
john.cook@allerdale.gov.uk

Lead Officer

Emma Thompson, Assurance, Risk and Audit
Manager. 01900 702988
emma.thompson@allerdale.gov.uk

Page 3

Report Implications (Please delete where applicable).
Community Safety

N

Employment (external to the Council)

N

Financial

N

Employment (internal)

Y

Legal

N

Partnership

N

Social Inclusion

N

Asset Management

N

Equality Duty

N

Health and Safety

N

Background papers: Assurance, Risk and Audit reports and working papers.
1

Introduction

1.1

This is the first progress report for the financial year 2019/20.

1.2

Items covered in this report are as follows:








Performance against the 2018/19 and 19/20 plan
Assurance and consultancy activities during the quarter
Fraud work
Assurance, Risk and Audit activity performance,
Quality Assurance and Improvement Program
Agreed Action follow up, and
Training and staffing.

2

Performance against the 2019/20 Audit Plan

2.1

Time Summary
Activity
Statutory Assurance Reviews
Assurance and Risk Support
Follow up and performance
Completion of 2018/19 reviews
Assurance Reviews
Democratic Representation
Corporate Support
Projects
Peer Review
Advice
Investigations
Fraud Activities
Risk Management Facilitation
Contingency
Total Audit Time
Hub Management
Total Chargeable Audit time
Non-Chargeable

Planned
Days
83
5
10
10
64
28
101
30
5
5
5
15
5
6
372
100
372

Page 4

Actual
Days
0.27
1.57
0.98
17.86
0
3.82
19.86
3.48
0
0.07
0
3.78
1.55
0
53.24
15.84
53.24

Non chargeable time
Training
Sickness / other absences

30
30
49

5.68
9.05
29.29

Total Non-Chargeable Time

109

44.02

Annual Leave

109

22.07

Total Days available

481

97.26

2.2

The chargeable time performance for quarter one is 55% (total time/total days)
this is significantly below the planned target of 77.34%. This is due to the 25 days
sickness recorded during the quarter.

2.3

Additional external audit support has been supplied by Mersey Internal Audit
Agency for ICT assurance. This report was issued in draft during quarter one and
will be presented to the Audit Committee as final in the quarter two performance
report.

3

Assurance and Consultancy Activities

3.1

The assurance activities for this quarter focused on finalising the review of the
former Housing and Health Service, the review of Financial Services, Risk
Management, Revenues and Benefits and Car Parking Income.

3.2

The following reports were submitted this quarter and can be found in appendix
one and two to this report:

Housing and Health 18/19

Revenues and Benefits 18/19

Risk Management 18/19

Car Parking Income 18/19 (appendix two restricted)

3.3

Following the creation of the Programme Office service the governance
arrangements have changed. The ARA Manager is now only involved in risk
discussions upon request.

3.4

The ARA Manager has provided specific advice and guidance in relation to risk
management for the changes to arrangements for the security of cash handling
for car parking income.

3.5

Risk management facilitation is a vital role of the Assurance Risk and Audit
Service, during this quarter we have supported the organisation by:
 Facilitating a risk management workshop for the Senior Management
Team and third Tier Managers – this focused performance risk and was
well attended.
 Facilitating a risk management workshop to the Audit Committee.
 Specific risk support for the plans for the community stadium.

4

Corporate Fraud

Page 5

4.1

The National Fraud Initiative data matches were received in January 2019.
These have been categorised by risk and allocated to the appropriate service for
action.

4.2

The Corporate Fraud Group continues to meet and discuss any opportunities to
improve internal policy and process to contribute to the zero tolerance approach
to fraud at Allerdale. The ARA Manager now attends the monthly fraud meetings
with DWP to gain further insight into the working arrangements for housing
benefit fraud referrals from Allerdale to DWP.

4.3

The Revenues and Benefits department have worked hard to review the data
matches, 4634 cases had been reviewed at the time of writing this report, with an
identified over payment outcome of £30,467.

5

Progress with the Annual Plan

5.1

The following reviews were in progress at 30 June 2019:
Audit Title
Financial Services
ICT (External)
Health and Safety

5.2

Status
Final Report clearance
Final Report clearance
Testing

Management’s acceptance of recommendations - 100%

Page 6

Assurance, Risk and Audit is designed to add value and assist management in
achieving the organisations overall key aims and objectives. An indicator for ARA
performance is that 100% of all recommendations made are accepted by
management.
5.3

Management’s implementation of agreed actions (recommendations) up to
here
After follow up following the quarter ending 30 June 2019, 22 actions were
overdue, further follow up work has been completed to reduce this to 15 at the
time of writing this report. Eight of these actions are over 50% complete.
Strategy Policy and
Performance
High
Medium
Low
1
Financial
Services
High Medium
Low
1

6

Total
1

Total
1

Customer Operations and
Transformations
High
Medium
Low Total
2
2
Place Development and
Housing
High
Medium
Low Total
2
3
5

Community Services
High
Medium
Low Total
1
5
6
Quality Assurance and Improvement Program (QAIP)

6.1

The revised Survey Monkey questionnaire was issued to clients and responses
for this quarter can be found at appendix three to this report. We will continue to
look at ways to increase client feedback responses and overall performance.

7

Risk Management

7.1

The six monthly risk workshops have continued, with the last session held on 27
June 2019 and great feedback was received; this format allows Officers to focus
time on good quality risk management discussions. Further work will be
completed by the team when the Executive have confirmed their Council Plan
priorities for the next four years.

7.2

The Corporate Risk Register is published as part of the Performance Reports to
Executive and can be found as part of the Executive agenda 4 September 2019.
Performance Report Q1 2019/20 See Appendix 1C

8

Services Delivered as Locally as Possible

8.1

Assurance, Risk and Audit operates in support of other Council services.

9

Finance and or Resource Implications

9.1

There are currently no finance or additional resource issues that have not already
been included in the report.

Page 7

10

Legal Implications and Risks

10.1

Acceptance of this report has no legal, health and safety or risk management
implications other than the consideration of the Corporate Risks and Issues Log
by the Committee in terms of oversight of the effectiveness of Risk Management
Framework.

11

Recommendations

11.1

1. That the report is accepted subject to any additional information that the
committee may require.
2. That the self-assessment is considered.
Emma Thompson
Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager

Page 8

Report Summary for Revenues and Benefits Review 18/19

Appendix 1

Page 9
Comprehensive Assurance


Housing Benefit
Payments



Council Tax



NNDR

Substantial Assurance

Limited Assurance

Minimal Assurance

Guide to the audit assurance opinions

Page 10

Comprehensive

There is a sound system of controls
designed to meet objectives, manage
risks and controls are consistently
applied in all the areas reviewed.

Substantial

There is a good system of controls
and risks are managed. However,
there are opportunities for
improvement in the design or
consistency of application that will
assist in the achievement of
objectives identified as being at risk in
the areas reviewed.

Limited

Minimal

Key controls exist to help achieve
objectives and manage principle risks.
However, there are opportunities for
improvement in the overall control
environment which would enhance the
design and application of controls,
thereby assisting the achievement of
objectives identified as being at risk in
the areas reviewed.
The absence of basic key controls or
the inconsistent application of key
controls is so severe that the audit
area is open to abuse or error. Risks
to objectives are not being managed.

Scope and objective
Internal audits mission is to enhance and protect organisational
value and support the Council Plan by providing risk based and
objective assurance, advice and insight.
The Assurance, Risk and Audit Team endeavour to add value and
improve Allerdale Borough Council’s operations and help to
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes.
As part of the 2018/19 Assurance Risk and Audit Plan, a review
has been undertaken of the risk management, controls and
processes and procedures in place in respect of the Revenues
and Benefits Service. The aim of this review is to provide
management with assurance that controls, governance and risk
management activities are robust and operating as intended, that
mitigating actions are in place to manage risks for this area and
provide recommendations for improvements to add value, if
appropriate.
Information and evidence was gathered using a number of
techniques including interviews with key officers testing,
observations and questionnaires.
Audit testing is identified in the audit scope and is primarily
sample based, full coverage of the system and complete
assurance cannot be given to an audit area.
Assurance Risk and Audit would like to thank all staff involved
during the course of the review for their help and assistance.

Recommendations
High
0

Medium
1

Assurance
Area

Page 11

Housing
Benefit
Payments
Audit Opinion
Comprehensive

Area of Good Practise
Low
0

Risks/Weaknesses
Assurance was gained from the
observation on 6 February 2019 of the
weekly Housing Benefit pay-run
process that controls and key controls
were in place.
The experienced System Support
Officer (SSO) had a robust process in
place and this was followed to ensure
the correct controls and procedures
were delivered. The SSO updates the
process on a regular basis to ensure
that other team members have a
reference should they be performing
the tasks in his absence.
Observation and testing undertaken of
failed BACS payments concluded that
measures were in place to ensure
issues were resolved quickly and
efficiently and returned payments were
processed effectively in all relevant
finance systems.

The Revenues and Benefits staff worked with during the review
showed excellent knowledge of their areas.
The Customer Accounts Officer - Ratings Officer, was very helpful
and knowledgeable about her service area, which helped the
review to be more efficient.

Recommendations

Recommendation date
and responsibility

Page 12

Bank reconciliation to reconcile the
bank account to the General Ledger
(GL) and additional reconciliations of
Council Tax and NNDR are completed
on a monthly basis, this was confirmed
by the Technical Officer and noted on
the Monthly Certification Form 18/19
which is monitored by the Financial
Services Manager, this was not reperformed for this review due to it
being considered low risk.
Comprehensive assurance has been
provided in previous reviews and
substantive evidence was provided by
the Assistant Accountant to show the
reconciliation had been completed
accurately.
Council Tax

Testing and discussions with key
members of staff demonstrated a good
Audit Opinion system of controls to ensure all
Comprehensive dwellings receive accurate council tax
bills each financial year. Testing
confirmed good quality control
resulting from sample testing at the
beginning of the year.
Amendments to the main billing
supplier contract were agreed at
operational level without consulting the
Data Protection Officer or Legal Team
for advice.
Competent and experienced staff
carry out prompt action and
reconciliation to the Valuation Office
schedule to confirm accuracy and
correct billing.

Recommendation 1 (Medium) Amendments to contracts in relation to
compliance with data processing
legislation should be reviewed and
agreed by Allerdale’s Data Protection
Officer prior to signing. Allerdale terms
and conditions should be used for all
contracts.
Response – Completed during draft
report stage.
Confirmation provided that variation is
acceptable from the Data Protection
Officer and Legal Officer, rational for
amendment provided via ‘Allerdale –
2019 Statement of Work’ e-mail.

Observation and testing demonstrated
that overpaid council tax is refunded
promptly after all steps in the process
are taken to ensure refunds are
appropriate. Sample testing confirmed
that income and refund balances in
Academy are accurately recorded in
the GL. Payments testing confirmed
correct payment posting.
NNDR

Page 13

An observation of the combination of
system, human controls and testing
Audit Opinion confirmed good controls are in place
Comprehensive to ensure business premises receive a
correct and accurate NNDR bill for
each financial year.
Observation and sample testing
demonstrated key controls are robust
to ensure the correct rateable value is
applied at the earliest opportunity.
Prompt action is taken and a
reconciliation to the Valuation Office
schedule confirms accuracy and
completeness of the database.
Sample testing of exemption relief
(Liability), confirmed that accounts are
updated promptly and changes of
circumstances acted upon at the
earliest opportunity to ensure accurate
billing. Integrity checks are made at
account start up. The suspense
account is regularly reviewed and
transactions transferred.

Testing confirmed payments were
allocated to the correct accounts in
Academy and accurate and timely
reconciliation of Academy and Total
GL balances.

Page 14

Observation and testing demonstrated
that overpaid Business Rates are
refunded promptly after all steps in the
process are taken to ensure refunds
are appropriate. Sample testing
confirmed that income and refund
balances in Academy are accurately
recorded in the GL. Payments testing
confirmed correct payment posting. An
attempted fraud has tested the
processes in place and evidenced that
they were working effectively as there
was no financial loss to the council
and the appropriate reporting lines
were followed accordingly.

Report Summary for Risk Management Review 18/19

Page 15
Comprehensive Assurance

Substantial Assurance

Risk Management Strategy

Service Risk

Corporate risk

Programme/Project
Risk

Limited Assurance

Minimal Assurance

Guide to the audit assurance opinions
Comprehensive There is a sound system of controls
designed to meet objectives, manage
risks and controls are consistently
applied in all the areas reviewed.
Substantial

Page 16

There is a good system of controls and
risks are managed. However, there are
opportunities for improvement in the
design or consistency of application that
will assist in the achievement of
objectives identified as being at risk in
the areas reviewed.

Limited

Key controls exist to help achieve
objectives and manage principle risks.
However, there are opportunities for
improvement in the overall control
environment which would enhance the
design and application of controls,
thereby assisting the achievement of
objectives identified as being at risk in
the areas reviewed.

Minimal

The absence of basic key controls or the
inconsistent application of key controls
is so severe that the audit area is open
to abuse or error. Risks to objectives are
not being managed.

Scope and objective
Internal audits mission is to enhance and protect organisational
value and support the Council Plan by providing risk based and
objective assurance, advice and insight.
The Assurance, Risk and Audit Team endeavour to add value and
improve Allerdale Borough Council’s operations and help to
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes.
As part of the 2018/19 Assurance Risk and Audit Plan, a review has
been undertaken of the controls and procedures in place in respect
of risk management The aim of this review is to provide
management with assurance that controls, governance and risk
management activities are robust and operating as intended, that
mitigating actions are in place to manage the key corporate risks for
this area as recorded by the risk owner and provide
recommendations for improvements to add value, if appropriate.
Due to the changes to the organisational structure the programmes
and projects framework in relation to risk management is in its
infancy, this review provides assurance over the process in place,
however further testing will be undertaken in 2019/20 when this is
embedded.
Information and evidence was gathered using a number of
techniques including testing, observations and questionnaires.
As audit work is controlled by the areas identified in the audit scope
and is primarily sample based, full coverage of the system and
complete assurance cannot be given to an audit area.
Assurance Risk and Audit would like to thank all staff involved
during the course of the review for their help and assistance.

Recommendations
High

Area(s) for improvement

Medium

0

3

Assurance Area

Page 17

Risk management strategy including
roles and responsibilities.
Integrated Assurance Strategy has been
developed, approved and communicated
to all staff. The assurance risk and audit
department are also available to support
and advise staff around risk
management.
A strategic risk register is in place across
the organisation and clearly defines roles
and responsibilities.
The Corporate Risk register is monitored
at a senior level in quarterly performance
reports for SMT & the Executive.

Low

2 areas for improvement were suggested.

0

Risks/Weaknesses
The Integrated Assurance Strategy
recommends that the Corporate risk log is
reviewed monthly by SMT. A review of the
past 6 months SMT meetings shows that
it was discussed 3 times. There has been
some re-formatting of the SMT meeting in
recent months and this should ensure the
corporate risk log is reviewed monthly.
A depth test was carried out on the
Corporate Risk Register. Ownership of
most corporate risks are available
however two are missing. Due to the reorganisation of the councils departments
some of the ownership of risks needs
updating. It was also apparent that
Customer Transformation, Finance and
Housing all have some risk management
information missing from the risk register.

Actions plan/Recommendations
Agreed Action 1. Corporate risk and
issues log is a standard agenda item at
SMT to ensure consistent monitoring.
(medium)
Head of Governance and Regulatory
Services 28 June 2019.

Agreed Action 2. Ownership of corporate
risk to be updated after re-organisation of
the council. (medium)
Head of Governance and Regulatory
Services 31 October 2019.

Corporate Risk
A test of two corporate risks confirmed
that mitigating actions where suitable for

Where there are multiple mitigating
actions for a risk it is difficult to

Area of improvement: Consideration be
given to consistently having a responsible

managing the risk.
Members have sufficient understanding
of strategic risks. Risk management
training has been recently carried out and
feedback shows that they felt this
improved their understanding and ability
to provide oversight in the process.

Page 18

comprehend who the responsible person
is.

person for each individual action detailed
in the risk register.

Although the risk register is reviewed
regularly there is an inconsistent
approach to how each service records
this. This would be beneficial in providing
a standardised approach for monitoring.

Area of improvement: A consistent
approach to recording the review of the
risk register would be beneficial for overall
monitoring.

Some service risks have multiple and
diverse risks that require management.
The ARA manager has developed a risk
profiling template for any complex risks.
The ARA Manager facilitates a workshop
to capture more in depth risk
management information to support the
delivery of objectives. Employees can
meet with ARA Manager/Officer on
request to discuss complex cases
Service risks
The Integrated Assurance Strategy
provides an organisational approach to
service risks.
A Service Risk Register is in place and is
regularly reviewed.

From the depth test there are some
Each service has its own section in the
mitigating action missing and responsible
organisations Service Risk Register.
risk owners for some areas.
There is a template used by all services
to provide a consistent approach. The
template and guidance on completing this

Agreed action 3. All service risk registers
should have up to date mitigating risks and
a responsible person assigned. (medium)
Head of Strategy Policy and Performance

is available on the document available on
SharePoint and in the Integrated
Assurance Strategy.

31 July 2019

Programme/Project risks

Page 19

The Programmes Office is currently going
through a review of their risk
management strategy a draft has been
drawn up. This sets out levels of
acceptable risk tolerance and roles and
responsibilities within projects.
A programme risk log is yet to be
completed due to fact that the
department has only recently been
convened. The template is already
available on SharePoint for completion;
no reviews have taken place yet due to it
being newly established.

Project and Programme Risks and
exceptions are regularly reviewed and
this is documented. The Project
Executive is responsible for regularly
reviewing risks and monitoring. The
sponsoring group/board have overall
oversight of risk management for the
project. The projects assurance board
provides independent view on progress
and quality of projects and makes

No depth testing was completed in
relation to this area as the newly created
Programme and Projects Service is not
yet embedded. ARA will prioritise this
area for testing as part of the risk
management review for 2019/20.

recommendation to SMT.
Roles and responsibilities for project and
programme risks and their mitigating
actions are clearly defined. Individuals
are aware of and understand their
respective responsibilities. Confirmation
of these roles are made available on a
monthly report made available to SMT.

Page 20

Report Summary for Housing and Health Review 18/19

Page 21
Comprehensive Assurance
0 Areas

Substantial Assurance
3 Areas
 Corporate risks
are managed
 Service risks are
managed
 Grants process
& Procedures

Limited Assurance
0 Areas

Minimal Assurance
0 areas

Guide to the audit assurance opinions
Comprehensive There is a sound system of controls
designed to meet objectives, manage
risks and controls are consistently
applied in all the areas reviewed.
Substantial

Page 22
Limited

Minimal

There is a good system of controls and
risks are managed. However, there are
opportunities for improvement in the
design or consistency of application that
will assist in the achievement of
objectives identified as being at risk in
the areas reviewed.
Key controls exist to help achieve
objectives and manage principle risks.
However, there are opportunities for
improvement in the overall control
environment which would enhance the
design and application of controls,
thereby assisting the achievement of
objectives identified as being at risk in
the areas reviewed.
The absence of basic key controls or the
inconsistent application of key controls
is so severe that the audit area is open
to abuse or error. Risks to objectives are
not being managed.

scope and objective
Internal audits mission is to enhance and protect organisational
value and support the Council Plan by providing risk based and
objective assurance, advice and insight.
The Assurance, Risk and Audit Team endeavour to add value and
improve Allerdale Borough Council’s operations and help to
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes.
As part of the 2018/19 Assurance Risk and Audit Plan, a review has
been undertaken of the controls and procedures in place in respect
of Housing & Health The aim of this review is to provide
management with assurance that controls, governance and risk
management activities are robust and operating as intended, that
mitigating actions are in place to manage the key corporate risks for
this area as recorded by the risk owner and provide
recommendations for improvements to add value, if appropriate.
Information and evidence was gathered using a number of
techniques including testing, observations and questionnaires.
Areas Covered where Housing Health responsibilities for corporate
risks, service risks, corporate business plan, finance, regulatory
services and the grants process and procedure. During the
completion of this review the Housing and Health Service has been
reorganised and this now sits between Place Development And
Regulatory Services. This report will be communicated to all
relevant parties.
As audit work is controlled by the areas identified in the audit scope

and is primarily sample based, full coverage of the system and
complete assurance cannot be given to an audit area.
Assurance Risk and Audit would like to thank all staff involved
during the course of the review for their help and assistance.

Recommendations

Page 23

High

Area(s) for improvement

Medium
6

Assurance Area
Housing and Health Corporate Risks:

Low

2 areas for improvement were suggested.

1

Risks/Weaknesses

Actions plan/Recommendations

The council has limited control over the
delivery of affordable housing due to the
reliance on other sectors in carrying this
out. Work such as giving information and
advice about assistance is carried out by
the Community Led Housing Officer and
meetings with community groups and
developers to encourage affordable
housing are regularly held.
In July 2018 a Strategic review of the
Disability Facilities Grant process was
undertaken using the lean principles due
to targets not being met and a desire to

Recommendation 1: The current DFG
framework agreement should be reviewed
and an options appraisal undertaken prior
to the existing frameworks. Complete

streamline the process.

Response Housing and Development
Manager. A decision has been taken to
enter into the framework agreement with
Carlisle City Council, this was considered
the best value for money.

Page 24

KPI’s have been amended due to the
extra grant funding streams that have
been introduced to more realistic targets
and an action plan has been put into place
to help achieve this. A Full time admin
assistant is now in post. Performance of
contractors is being monitored to improve
accountability and training for staff is
being addressed via staff appraisals.
Recommendation 2: A meeting of The
Strategic Housing Forum be arranged to
The Strategic housing forum formed to
agree the frequency of the meetings going
establish health priorities and potential
forward.
projects last met in October 2017. No
further meetings were arranged due to not (medium) Housing and Development
being as effective. The Housing
Manager
Development Manager confirmed that
after discussions with partners as to how
Date 30/9/19
to improve the meeting, there is possibility
that the forum will be re-established in
spring 2019 to fall in line with the strategic
housing policy, as a way of informing
partners of future goals and plans.
Recommendation 3: Regular specialised
To date there has not been regular
landlord training should be provided and
training sessions for landlords. A wellnewsletters should be consistently
attended consultation event and online
published at an agreed period. (low)
consultation was held in March 2018 in
regards to the new enforcement policy.
Response – External funding has been
The newsletter on Allerdale’s website from received for a rogue landlord project for St
Michael’s ward, this has the potential to be

2017 requires updating.

the format for future engagement with
landlords. Completed

A scheme offering financial support to
registered providers to minimise the risk of There are no further plans for landlord
training at this time.
losing social housing stock through
disposal requests was introduced but
there has been no interest and has now
been relinquished.
Service Risks:

Page 25

The temporary accommodation keys are
not stored in a secure area In line with
GDPR requirements.

Recommendation 4: The temporary
accommodation keys should be securely
stored, with limited access. (Medium)
Resilience and Safety Manager

The introduction of locata IT system to the
housing options team has meant more
efficient ways of working in line with the
new Homelessness Reduction Act.

There is an inconsistent approach across
the service to monitor and record training
carried out by employees. By maintaining
training records it shows regulatory
compliance and can be utilised by internal
management and the employee
themselves.
Water Sampling regulations changed in
July 2018 and samples must test 59
chemical parameters instead of 19.

Completed

Area of Improvement 1: Thought should
be given to reporting on B&B usage as
temporary accommodation so that
assurances around cost can be
considered.

Recommendation 5: A consistent
approach to monitoring and recording
training and qualifications should be sought
to demonstrate competency in statutory
roles. (medium)

Increasing the time required to complete
water sampling and the need for more
samples requiring re-testing due to this.
The role which covers water sampling has
also altered to include additional duties
including enforcement, therefore The
Environmental Protection Manager feels
resource required for the altered role, and
specifically the water sampling
programme should be reviewed.

Page 26

The ‘prevent’ terrorism awareness elearning course is mandatory for all staff.
8 Housing and Health staff members have
yet to complete this. A ‘prevent’ board has
been established and meeting quarterly.
Grants Process:

Process maps are available for all grants.
However due to the implementation of the
new Arcus system these will need to be
amended in line with the new system
processes.
Applications are currently held in paper
files and information is duplicated and
stored on M3 system. The M3 system is
due to be replaced by Arcus and
consideration should be made holding all
information on their only to make the
process more efficient.
Target dates have been set for staff to
achieve each step of the Grants process.

Human Resources Manager
Complete

Recommendation 6: The resource
requirement for the water sampling
programme should be reviewed to ensure
statutory duties are met and that this is
done cost effectively (medium)
Complete – resource plan has been
created and escalated to management

This has been successfully implemented
and is being monitored by the Housing
Manager in order to monitor any
problematic areas and ensure that grants
are processed in a timely and efficient
way.
No documentation is held to evidence that
applicants of means tested grants have
meet the approved criteria.

Recommendation 7: Evidence that an
applicant has met the qualifying approved
criteria for means tested grants should be
retained. (medium) Completed
Housing and Development Manager

Page 27

Response – The Arcus solution will have
the facility for uploading images of financial
evidence to support means testing, this will
be built into the Arcus system.

A number of checks are completed to
check whether any duplicate grant
applications have been made, however no
record of the checks are saved as an audit
trail making it difficult to know if assurance Area in for improvement 2 Checks for
check has been completed.
duplicate grant applications should be
recorded for grant compliance monitoring
and management purposes. (medium)
Completed as part of ongoing
management monitoring.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Q1 How would you rate your overall satisfaction with us?
Answered: 1

Skipped: 0

Good

Satisfied

Dissatisfied

somewhat
dissatisfied

very
dissatisfied
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES

RESPONSES

Good

100.00%

1

Satisfied

0.00%

0

Dissatisfied

0.00%

0

somewhat dissatisfied

0.00%

0

very dissatisfied

0.00%

0

TOTAL

1

1 / 8 37
Page

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Q2 Please rate our Assurance risk and Audit officer on the following
attributes
Answered: 1

Skipped: 0

Provided
quality service

Was
understandin...

Approachable

Provided an
Independent...

2 / 8 38
Page

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Communicated
effectively

Professionalism

0%

10%

Very Poor

20%

Poor

30%

40%

Fair

50%

Good

VERY POOR
Provided quality service
Was understanding of your challenges and demands
Approachable
Provided an Independent service
Communicated effectively

Professionalism

60%

70%

80%

90% 100%

Very Good
POOR

FAIR

GOOD

VERY GOOD

TOTAL

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

1

3 / 8 39
Page

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Q3 How would you rate the below aspects of the audit?
Answered: 1

Skipped: 0

Notice period
given ahead ...

The scope and
objectives o...

Audit ran to
schedule wit...

The draft
report...

4 / 8 40
Page

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

The final
report was...

0%

5

10%

4

20%

30%

Good

40%

50%

Satisfactory

60%

70%

80%

90% 100%

Poor

5

4

GOOD

SATISFACTORY

POOR

TOTAL

Notice period given ahead of the audit (the brief issued to heads of
service)

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

1

The scope and objectives of the audit reflected the areas you
wished to be reviewed

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

1

Audit ran to schedule with minimal disruption

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

1

The draft report adequately addressed the key issues/risks to the
service

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

1

The final report was clear and concise

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

1

5 / 8 41
Page

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Q4 Do you feel the Audit has added value to your service?
Answered: 1

Skipped: 0

Yes

No

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES

RESPONSES

Yes

100.00%

1

No

0.00%

0

TOTAL

1

6 / 8 42
Page

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Q5 Do you agree or disagree that the Auditor was knowledgeable and
insightful when making recommendations and providing assurance
around key controls?
Answered: 1

Skipped: 0

Agree

Disagree

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES

RESPONSES

Agree

100.00%

1

Disagree

0.00%

0

TOTAL

1

7 / 8 43
Page

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Q6 We are continually looking for ways to improve the quality and
delivery of our service. What changes would most improve our service?
Answered: 0

Skipped: 1

8 / 8 44
Page

Agenda Item 6
Allerdale Borough Council
Audit Committee – 12 September 2019
Council – 25 September 2019
Treasury Management Annual Review 2018-19

The Reason for the Decision

To inform members of the performance of the
Council’s treasury management (TM) activities
during 2018-19, the effects of TM decisions and
transactions executed in the past year and of
compliance with its Treasury Management Policy.

Recommendations

That the contents of this report be noted.

Financial / Resource Implications

None

Legal / Governance Implications

The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury
Management and the CIPFA Prudential Code for
Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the
Prudential Code) requires the Council to report on
specific aspects of its treasury management
activities after the year end.

Community Safety Implications

None

Health and Safety and Risk
Management Implications

The Council regards the successful identification,
monitoring and control of risk to be the prime
criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury
management activities will be measured.

Equality Duty considered / Impact
Assessment completed

N/A

Wards Affected

None directly

The contribution this decision would
make to the Council’s priorities

None directly

Is this a Key Decision

No

Portfolio Holder

Councillor M. Johnson

Lead Officer

Barry Lennox, Financial Services Manager
Ext: 2586
email: barry.lennox@allerdale.gov.uk

Page 45

Report Implications
Community Safety

N

Employment (external to the Council)

N

Financial

N

Employment (internal)

N

Legal

Y

Partnership

N

Social Inclusion

N

Asset Management

N

Equality Duty

N

Health and Safety

N

1.0 Introduction
1.1 Regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 require the Council
to produce an annual report on its treasury management activities and
prudential and treasury indicators for the financial year. This report satisfies this
obligation and the associated reporting requirements of the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Treasury Management (the TM Code) and the CIPFA Prudential
Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).
1.2 During 2018-19 the minimum reporting requirements - set out in the Council’s
Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) and Investment Strategy were that Council should receive the following reports:
 an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment
Strategy in advance of the year (Council 7 March 2018)
 a mid-year treasury update report (Council 5 December 2018)
 an annual review following the end of the year describing the activity
compared to the strategy (this report).
1.3 The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review
and scrutiny of the Council’s treasury management policies and activities. This
report is important in that respect, as it provides:
 details of the Council’s treasury activities during the financial year
and its overall treasury position at 31 March 2019
 evidence of compliance with the treasury policies previously
approved by members.
1.4 To enable the Audit Committee to fulfil its responsibilities for ensuring effective
scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies, the Council’s
Treasury Management Practices (TMPs) require treasury management reports
- including the annual report - to be submitted to the Audit Committee prior to
their consideration by Council.
1.5 This report summarises the following:
 Economic background (section 2)
 Overall treasury position at 31 March 2019 (section 3)
 Borrowing requirement (section 4)
 Borrowing rates (section 5)

Page 46








Borrowing strategy for 2018-19 (section 6)
Borrowing activity during 2018-19 (section 7)
Investment rates (section 8)
Investment Strategy for 2018-19 (section 9)
Investment outturn for 2018-19 (section 10)
Prudential and Treasury Indicators (section 11 and Appendix A).

2.0 Economic Background
U.K.
2.1 After weak economic growth of only 0.1% in quarter 1 (Jan to March) of 2018,
reflecting, at least in part, to the temporary impact of adverse weather, growth
picked up to 0.4% in quarter 2 and to a particularly strong 0.7% in quarter 3,
before cooling off to 0.2% in the final quarter. Given the uncertainties over
Brexit, this weak growth in the final quarter was not out of line with
expectations. However, some recovery in the rate of growth is expected going
forward. The annual growth in Q4 came in at 1.4% y/y confirming that the UK
was the third fastest growing country in the G7 in quarter 4. Boosted by
companies in the UK and the European Union building stocks ahead of the
original March Brexit deadline, growth in quarter 1 of 2019 was unexpectedly
strong at 0.5% (1.8% y/y).
2.2 Following a flow of generally positive economic statistics, the Monetary Policy
Committee took the decision on 2 August 2018 to make the first increase in
Bank Rate above 0.5% since the financial crash, to 0.75%. Since then,
uncertainties over Brexit have increased, UK and global economic growth has
been subdued and inflation has fallen back close to the Bank of England’s 2%
target. The MPC have consequently abstained from any further increases and
any further action from the MPC is unlikely until the uncertainties over Brexit
clear. If there were a disorderly exit, it is possible that the Bank Rate would be
cut to support growth, but this is by no means certain.
2.3 The uncertainties about the nature of EU withdrawal mean the UK economy
could follow a wide range of paths over coming years. In response, the
appropriate path of monetary policy will depend on the balance of the effects of
Brexit on demand, supply and the exchange rate, with the Bank of England
stressing that the monetary policy response to Brexit, whatever form it takes,
will not be automatic and could be in either direction.
2.4 Employment growth has been stronger than expected, despite relatively soft
activity growth and Brexit uncertainties. Although productivity growth has
remained weak, the labour market nevertheless remains tight. Wage growth
picked up during 2018 and has been growing at its strongest sustained pace
since 2008. Wage inflation peaked at a new post financial crisis high of 3.5%,
(excluding bonuses) in the three months to December before falling marginally
to 3.4% more recently. British employers ramped up their hiring at the fastest
pace in more than three years in the three months to January as the country's
labour market defied the broader weakness in the overall economy as Brexit
approached. In the three months to March 2019, the unemployment rate fell to

Page 47

3.8%, its lowest rate since 1975. In the same period UK employment rate was
estimated at 76.1%, higher than for a year earlier (75.6%) and the joint- highest
figure on record.
2.5 CPI inflation has been on a falling trend since peaking at 3.1% in November
2017, reaching a new low of 1.8% in January 2019 before rising marginally to
1.9% in February and March. CPI subsequently rose slightly to 2.1% in April
before falling back again to 2.0% in May and June and is likely to remain
around this level over the next two years. However, if there was a no deal
Brexit, it could rise towards 4%, primarily as a result of imported inflation on the
back of a weakening pound.
2.6 The rise in wage inflation and fall in CPI inflation is good news for consumers
as their spending power is improving in this scenario as the difference between
the two figures is now around 1.5%, i.e. a real terms increase. Given the UK
economy is very much services sector driven, an increase in household
spending power is likely to feed through into providing some support to the
overall rate of economic growth in the coming months.
Brexit.
2.7 The UK is currently due to leave the EU on 31 October regardless of whether or
not a deal has been agreed with the EU. However, it is unclear if there will be
majority support in the Commons for any withdrawal option. If there was a
stalemate in the Commons, then that would increase the chances of a general
election in 2019.This could result in a potential loosening of monetary policy
and therefore medium to longer dated gilt yields could rise on the expectation of
a weak pound and concerns around inflation picking up.
European Union
2.8 The European Central Bank (ECB) provided massive monetary stimulus in
2016 and 2017 to encourage growth in the Eurozone. That produced strong
annual growth in 2017 of 2.3%. However, since then the ECB has been
reducing its monetary stimulus measures and growth has been weakening - to
0.4% in quarters 1 and 2 of 2018, and then slowed further to 0.2% in quarters 3
and 4; it is likely to be only 0.1% to 0.2% in quarter 1 of 2019. The annual rate
of growth for 2018 was 1.8% but is expected to fall to possibly around half that
rate in 2019.
2.9 The ECB ended its programme of quantitative easing purchases of debt in
December 2018. This means the central banks in the US, UK and EU have all
ended the phase of post financial crisis expansion of liquidity supporting world
financial markets by purchases of debt. However, the downturn in growth,
together with inflation falling well under the upper limit of its target range of 0%
to 2%, has prompted the ECB to take new measures to stimulate growth. With
its refinancing rate already at 0% and the deposit rate at -0.4%, it has probably
reached the limit of cutting rates.
2.10 At its March 2019 meeting, the ECB stated that it expects to leave interest rates
at their present levels “at least through the end of 2019”, but that is of little help

Page 48

to boosting growth in the near term. Consequently, it also announced a third
round of Targeted Longer-Term Refinancing Operations (TLTROs); this
provides banks with cheap borrowing every three months from September 2019
until March 2021 which means that, although they will have only a two-year
maturity, the Bank is making funds available until 2023, two years later than
under its previous policy. As with the last round, the new TLTROs will include
an incentive to encourage bank lending and they will be capped at 30% of a
bank’s eligible loans.
U.S.
2.11 President Trump’s massive easing of fiscal policy in 2018 fuelled a (temporary)
boost in consumption in 2018 which generated an upturn in the rate of growth;
this rose from 2.2%, (annualised rate) in quarter 1 of 2018 to 4.2% in quarter 2,
3.5% in quarter 3 and then back to 2.2% in quarter 4. The annual rate came in
at 2.9% for 2018, just below President Trump’s target of 3%. Growth in quarter
1 of 2019 was a strong 3.1% but current expectations are for this to weaken
considerably in quarter 2.
2.12 The strong growth in employment numbers has fed through to an upturn in
wage inflation which hit 3.4% in February, a decade high point. More recently
however, the strong growth in employment numbers recorded during 2018 has
faded, indicating that the US economy is cooling, while inflationary pressures
are also weakening. CPI inflation overall fell to 1.5% in February, a two and a
half year low, and looks to be likely to stay around that number in 2019 i.e.
below the Federal Reserve’s target of 2%.
2.13 The Federal Reserve increased rates by a further 0.25% in December to
between 2.25% and 2.50%, the fourth increase in 2018 and the ninth in the
upward swing cycle. However, since then, market expectations have swung to
expecting the Federal Reserve to cut rates over the next two years by 1.0% 1.25% in total to counter the expected downturn in growth.
Asia
2.14 Chinese economic growth has been weakening over successive years, despite
repeated rounds of central bank stimulus. Medium term risks are also
increasing especially as a result of credit intensive growth. Major progress still
needs to be made to eliminate excess industrial capacity and the stock of
unsold property, and to address the level of non-performing loans in the
banking and credit systems.
2.15 The trade war between the US and China on tariffs is also a major concern not
only to financial markets and China itself, but also for world growth, as any
downturn in China will spill over into impacting countries supplying raw
materials to China.
2.16 Japan has been struggling to stimulate significant GDP growth and to get
inflation up to its target rate of 2% despite huge monetary and fiscal stimulus. It
is also making little progress on fundamental reform of the economy.

Page 49

3.0 Overall Treasury Position at 31 March 2019
3.1 The Council’s treasury position at the beginning and end of 2018-19 was as
follows:
Table 1: Overall treasury position
31.3.18
Principal

Rate/
Return1

Av. Life

31.3.19
Principal

Rate/
Return1

Av. Life

£’000

%

Years

£’000

%

Years

15,380

5.42

25

15,067

5.45

24.6

85

0.00

<1

85

0.00

<1

15,465

5.39

15,152

5.39

Short-term investments

7,133

0.36

<1

6,313

0.69

<1

Long-term investments2

11

5.26

-

11

7.5

-

-

(1,909)

-

4,415

PWLB loans
Other borrowing
Total debt

Bank overdraft less cash
Total investments

(1,805)
5,339

0.37

0.70

-

1 weighted

average rate on borrowing/investments at 31 March (for illustrative purposes only)
including ‘policy investments’ falling outside of the Councils Treasury Management and
Investment Strategies
2 Not

3.2 The Council’s treasury management debt and investment position is organised
in order to ensure adequate liquidity for revenue and capital activities, security
for investments and to manage risks within all treasury management activities.
Procedures and controls to achieve these objectives are well established both
through member reporting detailed in the introduction and through officer
activity detailed in the Council’s Treasury Management Practices.
4.0 The Borrowing Requirement
4.1 The Council’s underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure is
measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). The CFR represents
the historic cost of capital expenditure that has yet to be financed by setting
aside resources (grants, contributions, capital receipts and revenue financing).
4.2 Capital expenditure that is not financed when incurred, through the application
of capital grants, contributions, capital receipts or a direct charge to revenue will
increase the capital financing requirement. It will also give rise to a requirement
to make an annual charge to the general fund known as the minimum revenue
provision (MRP). Charging the minimum revenue provision or a voluntary
revenue provision (in addition to the MRP) against the general fund will reduce
the CFR.
4.3 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2018-19 included
an expected net increase in the CFR of £4.817m during 2018-19 and a closing
CFR at 31 March 2019 of £25.46m. This increase was based on the 2018-19
capital budget approved by Council in March 2018 and the revised capital
budget for 2017-18 approved in November 2017. The estimated increase in the

Page 50

CFR during 2018-19 and the closing CFR balance at 31 March 2019 were later
revised to £5.397m and £24.314m respectively. These revisions reflect:


the 2017-18 capital outturn position and approved budget carry forwards
incorporated into the 2018-19 revised capital budget. This reduced the
opening CFR at 1 April 2018 by £1.726m and added £1.676m to the
expected increase in 2018-19.



capital expenditure growth and savings bids of £3.306m, funded from
borrowing, included in the revised 2018-19 capital budget



reprofiling of previously approved expenditure, funded from borrowing
between financial years; This included £5.022m transferred from 201819 to 2019-20 as part of the 2018-19 revised budget process and the
transfer of £620k, approved by Council in January 2019, from 2019-20 to
2018-19.

4.4 Details of actual borrowing transactions undertaken in 2018-19 are summarised
in section 7.
4.5 At 31 March 2019 the Council’s capital financing requirement stood at
£22.741m compared to £18.917m at 31 March 2018. The increase of £3.824m
over the course of 2018-19 reflects:
 an increase of £4.495m relating to unfinanced capital expenditure
incurred during the year
 a reduction of £671k resulting from amounts set aside from revenue
(the minimum revenue provision), calculated in accordance with the
approved MRP Policy Statement for 2018-19.
Table 2: Capital Financing Requirement

CFR at 31 March
1

31.3.18
Estimate

31.3.18
Actual

31.3.19
Approved
Estimate

31.3.19
Updated
Estimate1

31.3.19
Actual

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

20,643

18,917

25,460

24,314

22,741

reported in mid-year review based on revised capital budget

4.6 The variance of £1.573m between the actual and updated estimate of the CFR
at 31 March 2019 comprises:
 £1.327m relating to the unfinanced portion of approved 2018-19 capital
budget carry forwards (i.e. the amount funded from borrowing) of £2.444m


£0.246m reduction in unfunded capital expenditure associated with the
reported net underspend (after budget carry-forwards) of £0.105m.

4.7 Capital budget carry-forwards of £2.444m were approved as part of the 201819 Capital Outturn report presented to the Council’s Executive on 28 June
2019. These carry-forwards relate to the re-profiling of previously approved
budget expenditure from 2018-19 to 2019-20 on the following capital schemes:

Page 51

 Reedlands Road Development - carry forward £1.112m (£0.443m
unfinanced)
 Public Toilets Review Works - carry forward £0.109m (£0.075m unfinanced)
 Healthy Homes - carry forward £0.142m (£0.142m unfinanced)
 Mandatory Disabled facilities Grant carry forward £0.102m (£0
unfinanced)
 Brow-Top enhancement scheme - carry forward £0.133m (£0.133m
unfinanced)
 Highfield Community Centre - carry forward £0.101m (£0.101m unfinanced)
 RCV Vehicles and wheeled bins - carry forward £0.136m (£0.136
unfinanced)
 Flood resilience schemes - carry forward £0.185m (£0.185m unfinanced)
 Other schemes - carry forward £0.424 (£0.112m unfinanced).
5.0 Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) Borrowing Rates in 2018-19
5.1 Interest rate forecasts provided by the Authority’s Treasury advisors (Link Asset
Services) expected only gradual rises in medium and longer-term fixed
borrowing rates during 2018-19 and the two subsequent financial years.
Variable, or short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper form of
borrowing over the period. Table 3 shows the PWLB borrowing rate forecasts
included in the TMSS and the updated forecast included in the Mid- year review
issued following the quarterly Bank of England Inflation Report and the
decisions and forward guidance issued by the Banks Monetary Policy
Committee (MPC) at its meeting on 2 August.
Table 3: Forecast interest rates 2018-2021
Quarter ending
Mar 2018
Jun 2018
Sep 2018
Dec 2018
Mar 2019
Jun 2019
Sept 2019
Dec 2019
Mar 2020
Jun 2020
Sept 2020
Dec 2020
Mar 2021

5 year %
TMSS Mid- Yr
1.60
1.60
1.70
1.80
2.00
1.80
2.10
1.90
2.20
1.90
2.20
2.00
2.30
2.10
2.30
2.10
2.40
2.20
2.50
2.30
2.50
2.30
2.60

PWLB Borrowing Rates1
10 year %
25 year %
TMSS Mid- Yr TMSS
Mid- Yr
2.20
2.90
2.30
3.00
2.40
3.00
2.40
2.50
3.10
2.90
2.50
2.50
3.10
3.00
2.60
2.60
3.20
3.10
2.60
2.70
3.20
3.10
2.70
2.70
3.30
3.20
2.70
2.80
3.40
3.20
2.80
2.90
3.50
3.30
2.90
2.90
3.50
3.40
2.90
3.00
3.60
3.50
3.00
3.10
3.60
3.50

1Certainty

50 year %
TMSS Mid- Yr
2.60
2.70
2.80
2.90
2.70
2.90
2.80
3.00
2.90
3.00
2.90
3.10
3.00
3.20
3.10
3.30
3.10
3.30
3.20
3.40
3.30
3.40
3.30

rates are calculated by subtracting 0.2% from the standard new loan rates. Certainty rates
apply to authorities who have provided MHCLG with required information on their plans for long-term
borrowing and associated capital spending.

Page 52

5.2 The graphs and tables below and in appendix B show, for a selection of
maturity periods, the high and low points for PWLB certainty maturity rates, the
average rates, spreads and individual rates at the start and the end of the
financial year.
Graph 1: PWLB borrowing rates 2018-19

5.3 The graph above shows that whilst PWLB rates were on a rising trend during
the latter half of the second quarter, there was little consistent trend in rates
during the first six months of the financial year. After peaking in October 2018,
most PWLB rates have been on a general downward trend, though longer term
rates did spike upwards again during December and, (apart from the 1 year
rate) reached lows for the year at the end of March.
5.4 At 31 March 2019 the 50 year PWLB certainty rate for new loans stood at
2.23% (fixed) compared to 2.27% at 1 April. The 25-year rate ended the year at
2.4% compared to 2.55% at 3 April 2018. This compares with updated
forecasts included in the Mid-year report for 50 and 25 year maturities at the
end of 2018-19 of 2.9% and 2.7% respectively.
5.5 Over the course of the year there was a significant level of correlation between
movements in US Treasury yields and UK gilt yields (which determine PWLB
rates). The US Federal Reserve (the Fed.) increased the Federal Reserve Rate
four times in 2018, making nine increases in all in this cycle, to reach 2.25% –
2.50% in December. However, it had been giving forward guidance that rates
could go up to nearly 3.50%. These rate increases and guidance caused
Treasury yields to also move up. However, by December 2018 financial
markets had reached the view that the Fed had gone too far and discounted
expectations of further increases.

Page 53

5.6 Since then, the Fed has also come round to the view that there are probably
going to be no more increases in this cycle. The issue now is how many cuts in
the Fed Rate there will be and how soon, in order to support economic growth
in the US. But weak growth now also looks to be the outlook for China and the
EU so this will mean that world growth as a whole will be weak. Treasury yields
have therefore fallen sharply during 2019 and gilt yields/PWLB rates have also
fallen. This trend has continued into the 2019-20 financial year with PWLB rates
on a general falling trend during most of the first quarter. This fall has been
largely caused by a fall in US Treasury yields as investors have become
increasingly concerned that the US economy is heading towards a sharp fall in
GDP growth.
6.0 Borrowing Strategy for 2018-19
6.1 In recent years, the Council has maintained an under-borrowed position. This
means that the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement CFR), has not been fully funded with loan debt. By utilising cash supporting the
Council’s reserves and favourable in-year cash flows, the Council has been
able to avoid the need to borrow up to the level of the CFR.
6.2 This has allowed the Council to minimise borrowing costs and reduce treasury
risk by postponing borrowing and reducing its external investment balances.
The policy of avoiding new borrowing by utilising cash balances has served the
Council well and is considered prudent in light of low investment returns and the
ongoing counterparty risk cosiderations which have endured since the 2008
financial crisis.
6.3 The borrowing strategy adopted in 2018-19 was for the Council to continue with
this policy to the extent permitted by its liquidity requirements and the effective
management of its interest rate exposures. In managing interest rate
exposures, interest rates were closely monitored throughout the year and a
pragmatic strategy adopted based upon the following principles:
•

if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp fall in long
and short term rates (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around
relapse into recession or of risks of deflation), then long term borrowing
would have been postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate
funding into short term borrowing would have been considered.

•

if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper rise
in long and short term rates than expected (e.g. due to an acceleration in
the start date and the rate of increase in central rates in the US and UK;
a greater tha expected increase in global economic activity or a sudden
increase in inflation risks), then the portfolio position would have been reappraised with the most likely action being to draw down fixed rate
funding whilst interest rates were lower than they were projected to be in
the next few years.

Page 54

7.0 Borrowing Activity in 2018-19
7.1 A summary of borrowing transactions undertaken during 2018-19 is included in
the following table (table 3).
Table 3: External borrowing activity during 2018-19
New
Borrowing
£’000

Borrowing
Repaid
£’000

Other
Movements
£’000

15,380

0

(313)

0

15,067

Local Bonds

31

0

0

0

31

Trust Funds

54

0

0

0

54

15,465

0

(313)

0

15,152

01-Apr-18
£’000

31-Mar-19
£’000

Long-term
PWLB – fixed rates
Short-term

7.2 The Council did not undertake any new borrowing, premature repayments or
rescheduling of existing borrowing during 2018-19.
7.3 Scheduled loan repayments of £313k were made during the year to March
2019.
7.4 The Council’s 2018-19 Budget and Treasury Management Strategy Statement
anticipated additional PWLB borrowing during 2018-19 of up to £5.4m to fund
the Council’s capital programme. As a result of the changes included in the
Council’s revised 2018-19 capital programme, including the impact of the reprofiling of expenditure funded from borrowing between financial years and the
later reprofiling change approved in January 2018, anticipated (maximum)
external borrowing requirements for 2018-19 was subsequently revised
upwards to £5.8m.
7.5 As noted above, the Council’s policy is to use internal borrowing to avoid or
postpone the timing of any new borrowing in circumstances where it considered
prudent to do so, having regard to its liquidity requirements and the effective
management of interest rate exposures.
7.6 During 2018-19, the reported underspend against the 2018-19 capital budget,
coupled with the timing of capital expenditure during the year and other positive
in year cash flows, has enabled the Council to continue with the policy and to
meet its liquidity requirements by utilising cash from reserves, revenue
balances and favourable in year cash flows without the need to borrow
externally.
7.7 As a consequence, during 2018-19 the Council has maintained an under
borrowed position level, increasing the level of under borrowing from £3.97m at
1 April 2018 to £7.59m at 31 March 2019.

Page 55

7.8 By utilising internal borrowing to meet capital funding requirements and
deferring the draw-down of new external (PWLB) borrowing the Authority has
been able to secure:
 non recurring savings - included in the 2018-19 revised budget - of
£133k against the original budget for interest costs
 a favourable outturn variance in interest payable - compared to the
revised budget - of £20k.
7.9 Further information regarding the movement in the CFR and the level of under
borrowing is set out in Appendix A (Prudential indicators).
7.10 At 31 March 2019, the Council’s PWLB loan portfolio consisted of fixed rate:
 maturity loans totalling £8.0m (31 March 2018: £8m)
 annuity loans of £1.627m (31 March 2018: £1.70m)
 EIP loans of £5.44m (31March 2018: £5.68m).
7.11 Interest rates applying to individual loans within the Council’s PWLB loan
portfolio range from 2.44% to 9.5%. At 31 March 2019, the weighted average
rate of interest payable on the Council’s PWLB loan portfolio stood at 5.45%
(31 March 2018: 5.42%). Whilst this remains above current rates applicable to
new PWLB borrowing (see Appendix B) - reflecting the historic nature of the
Council’s PWLB loans portfolio - no rescheduling was done during the year as
the average 1% differential, between PWLB new borrowing rates and
premature redemption rates, made rescheduling unviable.
7.12 At 31 March 2019, the ‘fair value’ of the Council’s PWLB loans portfolio –
measured using PWLB premature repayment rates – was £29.605m (31 March
2018: £29.598m) .The difference of £14.538m – between this and the principal
outstanding (£15.067) – reflects the premium that would be payable to repay
those loans prematurely (£14.337m), plus interest accrued from the previous
scheduled repayment date (£0.201m).
7.13 At 31 March 2019, the weighted average life of the Council’s PWLB loan
portfolio was approximately 25 years (31 March 2017: 25 years). The weighted
average time to maturity of these loans was 29 years (31 March 2018: 30
years).
8.0

Investment Rates in 2018-19

8.1 Deposit rates continued into the start of 2018-19 at previous depressed levels
and despite increases over the year have, in line with expectations, remained
low throughout 2018-19. As a consequence a cost of carry remained throughout
the year on any new long-term borrowing that was not immediately used to finance
capital expenditure as this would have caused a temporary increase in cash
balances and would have incurred a revenue cost reflecting the difference between
(higher) borrowing costs and investment returns.
8.2 The expectation for interest rates within the 2018-19 Treasury Management
Strategy was that Bank Rate would rise from 0.50% to 0.75% in or around the
third quarter (Oct to Dec). However the Strategy also emphasised that with so

Page 56

many external influences weighing on the UK (not least the uncertainties over
what form Brexit will eventually take), economic and interest rate forecasting
remained difficult. As a consequence interest forecasts were liable to further
changes depending on how economic data and developments in financial
markets unfolded over time. However, the Bank of England has continued to
stress that any future increases in the Bank Rate are expected to be gradual
and to a limited extent.
8.3 In its February Inflation Report (issued after publication of the Authority’s 201819 Treasury Strategy) the Bank signalled that should the economy evolve
broadly in line with its forecasts, monetary policy would need to be tightened
earlier and by a greater extent over the forecast period than anticipated at the
time of the November Report, in order to return inflation sustainably to the
target. In response the Council’s treasury advisors added one further 25bp rise
in the bank rate in May 2018.
8.4 However, at the start of 2018-19, UK GDP growth had proved disappointingly
weak in the first few months of 2018. As a consequence the expectation for the
timing of this increase was pushed back from May to August 2018.
8.5 Between April and July 2018 the 7-day LIBID rate remained broadly stable
before increasing sharply in August, as a result of the increase in Bank Rate on
2 August 2018 (Graph 2). Over the course of the first six months of 2018-19 the
7-day LIBID fluctuated between a high of 0.59% (14 September 2018) and a
low of 0.35% (19 July 2018). The average 7-day rate for the six months to
September was 0.43%. This compares with an average of 0.11% for the
corresponding period last year.
Graph 2: Investment Rates in 2018-19

Page 57

8.6 Following the sharp rise in August, the 7-day rate has remained broadly stable
over the second half of 2018-19, fluctuating between a high of 0.59% (1/11/18)
and a low of 0.57% (25/3/19). The average for the second half year was 0.58%
(2017-18: 0.32%).The average 7-day LIBID rate for 2018-19 was 0.51% (201718: 0.22%).
8.7 Investment rates for terms of three months and longer fell during April and May
after expectations collapsed that the MPC would raise Bank Rate at its May
meeting. Rates reached lows at the end of May before rising steadily over the
period May to August in anticipation that the MPC would raise the Bank Rate in
August. However, in view of the fact that the UK was entering into a time of
major uncertainty with Brexit due in March 2019, it was not expected that the
MPC would raise Bank Rate again during 2018-19 after August.
8.8 Investment rates for maturities of 3 months and longer were consequently little
changed during August to October. Rates did however rise sharply after the
MPC meeting of 1 November was unexpectedly hawkish about their perception
of building inflationary pressures, particularly from rising wages. However, weak
GDP growth data after December, plus increasing concerns generated by
Brexit, has seen investment rates falling back again during the final quarter of
the financial year.
9.0 Investment strategy
9.1 The Council’s investment policy is set having regard to the MHCLG’s Guidance
on Local Government Investments (‘MHCLG Investment Guidance’) (third
edition) issued in February 2018 and CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the
Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (‘the
Treasury Management Code’). The primary objectives of the Council’s treasury
investment activity are to ensure:
 first, the security of principal sums invested (i.e. to protect the capital
sum invested from loss)
 second, that appropriate levels of liquidity are maintained – (i.e.
ensuring funds invested are available to meet expenditure when
needed).
9.2 The policy for 2018-19 was set out in the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement and Investment Strategy approved by Council on 7 March 2018. The
contents of this policy include:
 procedures for determining the counterparties with whom investments
may be placed, including the use of credit ratings and other sources of
information to assess credit and counterparty risk
 the types of investment instruments that may be used
 limits on the amount that may be invested with any single institution or
group of institutions
 limits on the maximum period for which funds may be prudently
committed.

Page 58

9.3 In the current economic climate and in light of the Council’s forecast liquidity
requirements over the next 12-18 months, the investment strategy for 2018-19
considered it appropriate to keep investment terms short and to retain the
current upper limit on investment maturities of 12 months all new investments.
9.4 Continued uncertainty in the aftermath of the 2008 financial crisis promoted a
cautious approach, whereby investments would continue to be dominated by
low counterparty risk considerations, resulting in relatively low returns
compared to borrowing rates.
10

Investment Outturn for 2018-19

10.1 Investment activity during the year - excluding ‘policy investments’ falling
outside of the Councils Treasury Management and Investment Strategies - is
summarised in the following table:
Table 4: Investment activity during 2018-19
Credit
Rating

1 April
2018

Investments
Made

Repaid

31 March
2019

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Specified Investments
Call Accounts

AA-

822

16,743

(17,137)

428

Call Accounts

A / A-

796

28,273

(28,472)

597

0

1,200

(1,200)

0

AAA

5,515

52,586

(52,813)

5,288

Not rated

11

0

0

11

7,144

98,802

(99,622)

6,324

Term Accounts (DMO)
Money Market Funds

A

Non Specified Investments
Equity Shares

10.2 Investment activity during the year complied with the Council’s approved
strategy and the Council had no liquidity difficulties. In keeping with MHCLG’s
guidance on local authority investments, the Council maintained a sufficient
level of liquidity through the use of money market funds, call and fixed term
deposits with HM Government’s Debt Management Account Deposit Facility(DMO). All (specified) investments made during 2018-19 had a maximum
maturity not exceeding 365 days (from the date of acquisition).
10.3 During 2018-19 the Council maintained an average short-term investment
balance of internally managed funds of £15.6m (2017-18: £13.2m). These
funds earned an average rate of return of approximately 0.58% (2017-18:
0.24%). This compares favourably with the Council’s benchmark return (the
average 7- day LIBID rate) over the year of 0.52% (2017-18: 0.21%). The
amount of interest and dividends earned on investments (long-term and shortterm) during 2018-19 was £90,668 (2017-18: £32,137), compared to a revised
budget for 2018-19 of £32,000.

Page 59

Credit Risk
10.4 The Council’s prime policy objective of its investment activity is to ensure the
security of principal sums invested.
10.5 Ensuring the security of principal sums invested is achieved through active
management of the Council’s credit risk exposures. This includes placing
restrictions and limits on:
 the counterparties with whom investments may be placed based on the
creditworthiness of the counterparty
 the types of investment instruments that may be used
 the amount invested with any single institution or group of institutions
on the Council’s list of approved counterparties
 the duration of individual investment instruments depending on the
financial standing (creditworthiness) of the counterparty.
10.6 Whilst published credit ratings remain the primary means of assessing the
credit worthiness of counterparties, the Council continues to make use of other
sources of information on credit risk before making investment decisions. This
information includes:


ratings outlooks (indicating the likely direction of an issuer's rating over
the medium term)



credit watches and watchlists (indicating that downgrading or upgrading
of the credit rating could be imminent)



sovereign ratings and support mechanisms



credit default swap (CDS) spreads (indicating perceived market
sentiment regarding the credit risk associated with a particular
institution and an early warning of potential creditworthiness problems
which may only belatedly lead to actual changes in credit ratings).

10.7 In accordance with the Council’s Annual Investment Strategy, counterparties
used during 2018-19 were restricted to financial institutions and other bodies
with a minimum long-term rating across all three of the main credit ratings
agencies (Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s) of A- or equivalent (AA+ or
equivalent for non-UK sovereigns).
10.8 None of the investments made by the Authority during 2018-19 were with
counterparties holding a credit rating below the Council’s minimum credit rating
threshold.
10.9 With the exception of funds placed with HM Treasury’s Debt Management
Office (DMO), the maximum amount that may be placed with any institution or
group of institutions that are part of the same banking group is £4m. For funds
placed with the DMO’s Account Deposit Facility the current limit is £12m. There
were no breaches of these counterparty exposure limits during the financial
year.

Page 60

11

Prudential Indicators.

11.1 The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to determine and keep
under review, limits on how much money it can afford to borrow by way of loans
and other forms of credit (for example finance leases). The process the Council
must follow in setting these limits (the ‘Authorised Limit for External Debt’) is set
out in the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, to which the
Council is required to ‘have regard to’ under provisions contained in the 2003
Act.
11.2 In addition to the Authorised Limit, CIPFA’s Prudential and Treasury
Management Codes and accompanying the sector guidance, include a number
of other key treasury management indicators designed to ensure the Council
operates its treasury activities within well-defined limits. These include:
 setting an operational boundary for external debt based on the
expectations of the most likely maximum external debt for the year
 ensuring that gross debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) - the undeylying need to borrow
for capital purposes - at the end of the preceding year plus the estimates
of any additional CFR for current and the following two financial years
 placing upper limits on the total of principal sums invested for periods
of more than 365 days
 placing upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of borrowings.
11.3 The Council’s Authorised Borrowing Limit (the statutory limit on borrowing
under the Local Government Act 2003), Operational Boundary (the limit beyond
which external debt is not expected to exceed) and other indicators and limits
required by CIPFA’s Prudential and Treasury Management Codes, were set out
in the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment
Strategy for 2018-19 and approved by members on 7 March 2018.
11.4 During 2018-19 the Council complied with the limits established by the
Prudential and Treasury indicators included in its Treasury Management &
Investment Strategy for 2018-19. Further information relating to the Prudential
and treasury indicators for 2018-19 are set out in Appendix A.

Page 61

Appendix A: Prudential and treasury indicators
1

Indicators required by the Prudential Code

1.1

The Prudential Code requires local authorities to self-regulate the affordability,
prudence and sustainability of their capital expenditure and borrowing plans,
by setting estimates and limits and by publishing actuals for a range of
prudential indicators. It also requires them to ensure their treasury
management practices are in accordance with good practice.

1.2

The prudential and treasury indicators required by the Prudential Code and
the Treasury Management Code and accompanying sector guidance are
designed to support and record local decision making. They are not designed
to be comparative performance indicators and should not be used for this
purpose.

1.3

The Council’s performance compared to the limits and estimates set out in the
Council’s 2018-19 Treasury Management Strategy Statement and 2018-19
Mid-year Treasury Update Report are summarised in the following sections.

2

Actual capital expenditure

2.1

Table A shows the actual capital expenditure incurred during 2018-19.
Table A: Actual capital expenditure

General Fund Capital Expenditure

2017/18
Actual

2018/19
Approved

£000

£000

2018/19
Revised
estimate1
£000

2018/19
Actual2
£000

2,790

14,593

9,590

7,747

3

0

177

102

1,668

9,043

2,872

2,080

253

20

473

1,070

1,924

9,063

3,522

3,252

0

0

0

0

866

5,530

6,068

4,495

2,790

14,593

9,590

7,747

Financed by:
Capital receipts
Capital grants & contributions
Revenue
Total expenditure financed in year
Unfinanced capital expenditure:
Supported borrowing
Unsupported borrowing
Total financed & unfinanced

1 2018-19 revised capital budget (including revisions approved by Council in January 2019); 2 including
capital expenditure of £706k financed from the revenue budget

2.2

Capital expenditure is defined in section 16 of the Local Government Act 2003
and includes all expenditure that falls to be capitalised in accordance with
proper practices together with any items capitalised in accordance with
regulation 25 of the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting)
(England) Regulations 2003 (as amended), or by virtue of a capitalisation
direction issued under section 16(2) of the 2003 Act.

Page 62

2.3

The variance of £2.549m between the capital outturn position (£7.041m) and
the 2018-19 revised estimate (£9.590m) comprises:
 budget carry forwards of £2.444m
 net variance (underspend) of £105k.

2.4

Approved budget carry forwards of £2.444m reflect changes to the expected
timing of expenditure on individual schemes (rather than the overall amount of
expenditure) and subsequent budget revisions to reflect the re-profiling of
expenditure across the 2018-19 and 2019-20 financial years. Further details
relating to the capital outturn position for 2018-19 can be found in the Capital
Outturn report considered by the Council’s Executive on 28 June 2019. The
net variance on the capital budget after accounting for budget carry-forwards
was £105k.

3

Actual Capital Financing Requirement

3.1

The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is a measure of an authority’s
underlying need to borrow for capital purposes. It represents the historic cost
of capital expenditure that has yet to be financed by setting aside resources
(grants, contributions, capital receipts and revenue financing). It does not
necessarily correspond with an authority’s actual borrowing position which is
determined in accordance with an authority’s treasury management strategy
and practices. Table B shows the Council’s actual capital financing
requirement at 31 March 2019.
Table B: Capital financing requirement
2017/18
Actual

2018/19
Approved
estimate

2018/19
Revised
estimate1

2018/19
Actual

£000

£000

£000

£000

CFR at 1 April

18,674

20,643

18,917

18,917

CFR at 31 March

18,917

25,460

24,314

22,741

243

4,817

5,397

3,824

866

5,530

6,068

4,495

(623)

(713)

(671)

(671)

0

0

0

0

243

4,817

5,397

3,824

Movement in CFR
Movement represented by:
Unfinanced expenditure
Less MRP
Less Voluntary set aside
Movement in CFR

1 Updated to reflect 2018-19 revised capital budget (including revisions approved by Council in
January 2019)

4

Gross debt and the capital financing requirement (CFR)

4.1

A fundamental provision of the Prudential Code and a key indicator of
prudence is that, over the medium term, debt will only be for a capital purpose.
In order to ensure this is the case, gross external debt should not, except in
the short term, exceed the total of the capital financing requirement in the

Page 63

preceding year plus the estimates of any additional capital financing
requirement for the current and next two financial years.
4.2

This requirement allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future
years but ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.
Gross debt refers to the sum of borrowing and other long-term liabilities (credit
arrangements). Table C compares the Council’s gross debt and CFR.
Table C: Gross debt & the CFR
2017/18
Actual at
31.3.18
£000
PWLB

2087/19
Revised
estimate1
£000

2018/19
Actual at
31.3.19
£000

15,380

22,749

20,259

15,067

85

85

85

85

Total debt

15,465

22,834

20,344

15,152

CFR at 1 April

18,674

20,643

18,917

18,917

866

5,530

6,068

4,495

(623)

(713)

(671)

(671)

CFR at 31 March

18,917

25,460

24,314

22,741

(Under)/Over borrowing

(3,452)

(2,626)

(3,970)

(7,589)

Other borrowing

Add: Unfinanced capital expenditure
Less: MRP

1

4.3

2018/19
Approved
(max)
£000

based on the maturity profile of the Council’s loan portfolio at 30.9.18

At 31 March 2019, the Council was under-borrowed against its capital
financing requirement by £7.589m. This compares with an under-borrowed
position at 31 March 2018 of £3.452m. The increase of £4.137m during
2018/19 is represented by:
 an increase in the CFR of £4.495m as a result of unfinanced capital
expenditure incurred during the year, less
 a reduction in the CFR of £0.671m reflecting amounts set aside from
revenue in 2018-19 (the minimum revenue provision) to repay debt,
plus
 scheduled repayments of external (PWLB) borrowing of £0.313m.

5.

Authorised limit for external debt

5.1

The Authorised Borrowing Limit represents the statutory limit on borrowing
determined under section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003 (Affordable
Limit). It imposes an upper limit on the Council’s gross external debt
(excluding investments), separately identifying borrowing (external loans) from
other long-term liabilities (for example finance lease liabilities). Breach of the
Affordable Borrowing Limit is prohibited by section 2(1) (a) of the Local
Government Act 2003.

5.2

The Authorised Borrowing Limit is set with reference to the Council’s capital
expenditure plans, capital financing requirement (or underlying borrowing
requirement) and the potential need to borrow to meet temporary revenue
borrowing requirements pending the receipt of amounts due to the Council.

Page 64

The Affordable Borrowing Limit also includes headroom over and above the
Operational Boundary (see below) to accommodate any unusual or
unforeseen cash movements. The indicator separately identifies limits for
borrowing and other long-term liabilities.
Table D: Authorised Limit for External Debt
2018/19
Approved
£000
Borrowing
Other long-term liabilities
Total

2018/19
Revised
£000

31.3.19
Actual
£000

2018/19
Actual (max)
£000

28,000

28,000

15,152

15,465

0

0

0

0

28,000

28,000

15,152

15,465

6

Operational boundary for external debt

6.1

The Operational Boundary represents the limit beyond which (gross) external
debt is not expected to exceed. It is based on expectations of the maximum
external debt of a local authority according to probable events (that is, the
most likely (prudent) but not worst case scenario) and is consistent with the
maximum level of external debt projected by these estimates. The Operational
Boundary links directly to the Council’s plans for capital expenditure, estimates
of the capital financing requirement and cash flow requirements for the year
for all purposes, but without the additional headroom included within the
Authorised Limit. The indicator separately identifies limits for borrowing and
other long-term liabilities.
Table E: Operational boundary for external debt
2018/19
Approved
£000
Borrowing
Other long-term liabilities
Total

2018/19
Revised
£000

31.3.19
Actual
£000

2018/19
Actual (max)
£000

26,000

26,000

15,152

15,465

0

0

0

0

26,000

26,000

15,152

15,465

7

Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

7.1

This indicator of affordability highlights the revenue implications of existing and
proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue
budget required to meet financing costs (net of interest and investment
income).
Table F: Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream

%

2018/19
Approved
%

2018/19
Revised
%

2018/19
Actual
%

9.0

11.9

10.5

9.7

2017/18 Actual
Ratio

Page 65

7.2

Financing costs comprise the aggregate of:
 interest charged to the General Fund with respect to borrowing
 interest payable under finance leases and other long-term liabilities
 premiums and discounts from debt restructuring charged or credited to
the amount to be met from government grants and local taxpayers
 interest and investment income (excluding interest on policy
investments falling outside of the Council’s Treasury Management and
Investment Strategies)
 amounts payable or receivable in respect of financial derivatives
 minimum revenue provision plus any additional voluntary contributions
 any amounts for depreciation/impairment charged to the amount to be
met from government grants and local taxpayers.

7.3

Actual figures for Net Revenue Stream are taken from the Council’s
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for ‘taxation and nonspecific grant income and expenditure’.

8.0

Indicators required by the Treasury Management Code

8.1

In addition to the indicators required by the Prudential Code, there are also a
number of treasury indicators required by the Treasury Management Code
and accompanying sector guidance. These are:
 upper and lower limits to the maturity structure of its borrowing
 upper limits on the total of principal sums invested for periods of more
than over 365 days.

8.2

These treasury management indicators specify ranges (rather than targets)
designed to limit the Council’s exposure to interest rate, liquidity and
refinancing risks.

9

Upper and lower limits to the maturity structure of borrowing

9.1

This indicator highlights potential exposures to refinancing risk arising from
concentrations of fixed rate debt falling due for refinancing and is designed to
facilitate reductions in the Council’s exposure to refinancing at times of volatile
or high interest rates.

9.2

It is calculated as the amount borrowing maturing in each period as a
percentage of total borrowing. The maturity of borrowing is determined by
reference to the earliest date on which the lender can require payment.

Page 66

Table G: Lower/upper limits on % of borrowing maturing in each period
At 31.3.18
Actual
%

Lower limit
2018/19
%

Upper limit
2018/19
%

At 31.3.19
Actual
%

Under 12 months

2.57

0

20

2.67

12 months to 2 years

2.07

0

20

2.16

6.5

0

20

6.81

5 years to 10 years

12.13

0

30

12.76

10 years to 20 years

19.31

0

40

18.58

20 years to 30 years

5.69

0

40

4.22

30 years to 40 years

51.73

0

80

52.80

40 years to 45 years

0

0

80

0

2 years to 5 years

10

Upper limits to the total of principal sums invested for period of more than 365
days

10.1

A local authority that invests, or plans to invest, for periods of more than 365
days is required to set an upper limit for each forward financial year period for
the maturing of such investments. The purpose of the limit for principal sums
invested for periods longer than 365 days is to contain the authority’s
exposure to the possibility of loss that might arise as a result of its having to
seek early repayment or redemption of principal sums invested.
Table H: Upper limit on total principal invested for periods or more than 365
days

Principal sums invested > 364 days

2017/18
Actual
£000

2018/19
Approved
£000

2018/19
Revised
£000

11

20

20

2018/19
Actual
£000
11

Measured at fair value. The nominal value (historic cost) of principal sums investment as 31
March 2019 is £1k
1

Page 67

Appendix B

PWLB certainty rates 2018-19

At 2.4.18
At 29.3.19
Low
Date
High
Date
Average

1-Years
%

4½- 5 Years
%

9½-10 Years
%

1.48
1.48
1.28
1/6/18
1.64
10/10/18
1.50

1.85
1.55
1.50
28/3/19
2.07
10/10/18
1.80

2.23
1.85
1.80
28/3/19
2.5
10/10/18
2.19

24½- 25
Years
%
2.57
2.40
2.33
26/3/19
2.93
10/18/18
2.65

49½ - 50
Years
%
2.29
2.23
2.16
26/3/19
2.79
12/10/18
2.46

Money market investment rates 2018-19 (LIBID)
Bank
Rate

7 day

1 month

3 month

6 month

1 year

01/4/2018

0.50%

0.36

0.39

0.59

0.70

0.88

31/3/2019

0.75%

0.57

0.61

0.71

0.83

0.94

High

0.75%

0.59

0.61

0.81

0.92

1.06

Low

0.50%

0.35

0.37

0.48

0.59

0.75

Average

0.67%

0.51

0.54

0.68

0.79

0.94

Spread

0.25%

0.24

0.25

0.33

0.33

0.31

High date

2/8/18

1/11/18

10/12/18

29/1/19

15/1/19

11/1/19

Low date

1/4/18

19/7/18

30/5/18

30/5/18

30/5/18

30/5/18

Page 68

Appendix C
UK, US and EZ GDP growth

Inflation UK, US, Germany and France

Page 69

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70

Page 71
Year ended 31 March 2019
18 August 2019

Agenda Item 7

The Annual Audit Letter
for Allerdale Borough Council

Contents
Section

Page 72

Your key Grant Thornton team
members are:

Page

1. Executive Summary

3

2. Audit of the Financial Statements

4

3. Value for Money conclusion

8

Appendices
A

Reports issued and fees

12

John Farrar
Engagement Lead
T: 0161 234 6384 or 07880 456200
E: john.farrar@uk.gt.com
Angela Pieri
Engagement Manager
T: 0141 223 0887 or 07920 813338
E: angela.l.pieri@uk.gt.com
Fay Hutchinson
In-charge auditor

T: 0161 953 6954
E: fay.a.hutchinson@uk.gt.com

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter for Allerdale Borough Council | August 2019

2

Executive Summary
Purpose
Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the
work that we have carried out at Allerdale Borough Council (the Council) and
its subsidiaries (the group) for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Respective responsibilities
We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit Practice,
which reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the
Act). Our key responsibilities are to:
• give an opinion on the Council and group's financial statements (section two)
• assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section
three).

Page 73

This Letter is intended to provide a commentary on the results of our work to
the group and external stakeholders, and to highlight issues that we wish to
draw to the attention of the public. In preparing this Letter, we have followed
the National Audit Office (NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice and Auditor
Guidance Note (AGN) 07 – 'Auditor Reporting'. We reported the detailed
findings from our audit work to the Council's Audit Committee as those
charged with governance in our Audit Findings Report on 30 July 2019

In our audit of the Council and group's financial statements, we comply with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the
NAO.

Our work
Materiality

We determined materiality for the audit of the group's financial statements to be £895,000, which is 1.75% of the group's gross
operating expenditure.

Financial Statements opinion

We gave an unqualified opinion on the group's financial statements on 30 July 2019.

Use of statutory powers

We did not identify any matters which required us to exercise our additional statutory powers.

Value for Money arrangements

We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. We reflected this in our audit report to the Council on 30 July 2019.

Certificate

We certified that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Allerdale Borough Council in accordance with the
requirements of the Code of Audit Practice on 30 July 2019.

Working with the Council
During the year we have delivered a number of successful outcomes with
you:
•
•

An efficient audit – we delivered an efficient audit with you in June and
July, delivering the financial statements by the statutory deadline.
Sharing our insight – we provided regular audit committee updates
covering best practice. We also shared our thought leadership reports.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter for Allerdale Borough Council | August 2019

•
•

Providing training – we provided your teams with access to a local government
financial reporting and annual reporting workshop.
Supporting development – we participated in the workshop to the Audit Committee
on the role of external audit.

We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff.
Grant Thornton UK LLP
August 2019
3

Audit of the Financial Statements
Our audit approach

Page 74

Materiality
In our audit of the group's financial statements, we use the concept of
materiality to determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and in
evaluating the results of our work. We define materiality as the size of the
misstatement in the financial statements that would lead a reasonably
knowledgeable person to change or influence their economic decisions.
We determined materiality for the audit of the group financial statements to
be £895,000, which is 1.75% of the group’s gross operating expenditure. We
determined materiality for the audit of the Council’s financial statements to be
£894,000, which is 1.75% of the Council’s gross operating expenditure. We
used this benchmark as, in our view, users of the group and Council's
financial statements are most interested in where the group and Council has
spent its revenue in the year.
We also set a lower level of specific materiality for senior officers
remuneration at £12,000.
We set a lower threshold of £44,000, above which we reported errors to the
Audit Committee in our Audit Findings Report.

The scope of our audit
Our audit involves obtaining sufficient evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements to give reasonable assurance that they are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes assessing whether:
• the accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed;
• the significant accounting estimates made by management are reasonable; and
• the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view.
We also read the remainder of the financial statements and the narrative report and
annual governance statement published alongside the financial statements to check it
is consistent with our understanding of the Council and with the financial statements
included in the Annual Report on which we gave our opinion.
We carry out our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) and the NAO Code of Audit
Practice. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the group's business
and is risk based.
We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response to
these risks and the results of this work.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter for Allerdale Borough Council | August 2019

4

Audit of the Financial Statements
Significant Audit Risks
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.
How we responded to the risk

Findings and conclusions

Management override of controls

As part of our audit work we have:

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable
presumed risk that the risk of management
over-ride of controls is present in all entities.

•

evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals;

•

analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting high risk
unusual journals;

Our audit work has not
identified any instances of
management override of
controls.

We identified management override of
•
control, in particular journals, management
estimates and transactions outside the course
•
of business as a significant risk.

tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft accounts
stage for appropriateness and corroboration;

Page 75

Risks identified in our audit plan

•
Valuation of land and buildings and
investment property

We identified the valuation of land and
buildings and investment property
revaluations and impairments, as a significant
risk.

evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or
significant unusual transactions.

As part of our audit work we have:

•

The Council revalues its land and buildings on
•
a rolling five-yearly basis. Investment
properties are revalued annually.
•
These valuations represents a significant
estimate by management in the financial
statements.

gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements
applied made by management and considered their reasonableness with regard to
corroborative evidence; and

evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the
estimate, the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work;
evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert;
discussed with the valuer the basis on which the valuation was carried out;

•

challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess
completeness and consistency with our understanding;

•

tested revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly
into the Council's asset register and financial statements; and

•

evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued
during the year and how management has satisfied themselves that these are not
materially different to current value at year end.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter for Allerdale Borough Council | August 2019

Our audit work confirmed that
revaluations were carried out
by an appropriate external
expert. We were satisfied that
the value of land and
buildings not revalued during
the year was not materially
different to their reported
value at 31 March 2019.

No issues were found with
the revaluation of land and
buildings and investment
properties.

5

Audit of the Financial Statements
Significant Audit Risks
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.
How we responded to the risk

Findings and conclusions

Valuation of net pension
liability

As part of our audit work we have:

Our audit work identified one issue in
relation to liability for the McCloud
judgement. Management did not adjust
this in the financial statements as it was
not material at £139,000. This did not
impact upon our opinion on the financial
statements.

Page 76

Risks identified in our audit
plan

The Council's pension fund net
liability, as reflected in its
balance sheet as the net defined
benefit liability, represents a
significant estimate in the
financial statements and group
accounts.
This valuation represents a
significant estimate by
management in the financial
statements.
We identified the valuation of the
Council’s pension fund net
liability as a significant risk.

•

updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by
management to ensure that the Council’s pension fund net liability is not materially
misstated and evaluate the design of the associated controls;

•

evaluated the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an
actuary) for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

•

assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried
out the Council’s pension fund valuation;

•

assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the
Council to the actuary to estimate the liability;

•

tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the
notes to the core financial statements with the actuarial report from the actuary; and

•

undertook procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions
made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and
performing any additional procedures suggested within the report.

We did not identify any other issues in
respect of the valuation of the pension
fund net liability or with the associated
disclosure notes within the financial
statements.

The Council updated their estimate of the IAS pension fund liability due to the outcome
of the national ruling on the McCloud case which ruled that there was age
discrimination in the judges and firefighters pension schemes. There is an implication
for pension schemes where they have implemented transitional arrangements on
changing benefits which includes the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).
The increase in the net liability was £139,000 and as this was below materiality the
Council did not adjust their financial statements.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter for Allerdale Borough Council | August 2019

6

Audit of the Financial Statements
Audit opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the group's financial statements on 30
July 2019.

Page 77

Preparation of the financial statements
The Council presented us with draft financial statements in accordance with
the national deadline, and provided a good set of working papers to support
them. The finance team responded promptly and efficiently to our queries
during the course of the audit.
Issues arising from the audit of the financial statements
We reported the key issues from our audit to the Council's Audit Committee
on 30 July 2019.

Other statutory powers
We also have additional powers and duties under the Act, including powers to
issue a public interest report, make written recommendations, apply to the Court
for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law, and to give electors the
opportunity to raise questions about the Council's accounts and to raise objections
received in relation to the accounts.
We have not had to use any of these other powers.
Certificate of closure of the audit
We certified that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of
Allerdale Borough Council in accordance with the requirements of the Code of
Audit Practice on 30 July 2019.

There was one unadjusted misstatement for £139,000 for the outcome of the
McCloud case, with the decision to not adjust not impacting upon our audit
opinion.
Other audit adjustments identified were to disclosure notes only and all have
been amended by management in the final set of financial statements.
Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report
We are required to review the Council’s Annual Governance Statement and
Narrative Report. It published them on its website in the Statement of
Accounts in line with the national deadlines.
Both documents were prepared in line with the CIPFA Code and relevant
supporting guidance. Minor changes were identified to enhance existing
disclosure within the Annual Governance Statement and these were adjusted
by management in the final version.
We confirmed that both documents were consistent with the financial
statements prepared by the Council and with our knowledge of the Council.
© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter for Allerdale Borough Council | August 2019

7

Value for Money conclusion
Background
We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit
Practice, following the guidance issued by the NAO in November 2017 which
specified the criterion for auditors to evaluate:

Page 78

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions
and deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for
taxpayers and local people.

Overall Value for Money conclusion
We are satisfied that in all significant respects the Council put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
for the year ending 31 March 2019.
.

Key findings
Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and
identify the risks where we concentrated our work.
The risks we identified and the work we performed are set out overleaf.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter for Allerdale Borough Council | August 2019

8

Value for Money conclusion
Value for Money Risks
Risks identified in our
audit plan

How we responded to the risk

Findings and
conclusions

Financial sustainability

Our work in this area reviewed the Council's arrangements for updating, agreeing and monitoring its financial
plans including the assumptions within them. We also considered the arrangements in place to monitor the
identification and delivery of savings.

The Council has put in
place arrangements to
monitor and update its
financial plans including
the delivery of the
required savings.

Page 79

At the planning stage of the
audit we noted that the
Council’s MTFP for
2018/19 to 2021/22 from
November 2018 had a
£0.141 million unidentified
budget gap for 2019/20,
with £2.415 million for
2020/21 and £2.664 million
for 2021/22.

Even though the Council
has a good record of
delivering savings, the
unprecedented level of
savings required over the
remaining period of the
MTFP, on top of selfsufficiency savings,
represents a significant
challenge.

As part of the annual budget setting process, the Council’s s151 officer provides an assessment of the
adequacy of balances and reasonableness of assumptions and estimates used to produce the budget. The
MTFP is reviewed on an ongoing basis with the updated MTFP formally reported to members in November
2018 and again in February 2019 as part of the annual Council tax setting process. The MTFP projections,
reported in February 2019, for 2019/20 to 2021/22 showed a £2.33 million funding gap in 2020/21 and
£2.673 million in 2021/22.
In response, officers have identified over £3 million in potential savings from the transformation and
commercial programme. The identified items cover service reviews, service changes, new ways of
working, commercialisation, regeneration and investment opportunities. The potential savings would be
subject to Council scrutiny in relation to the approval of savings business cases and appropriate
consultation.
When setting the 2018/19 budget in March 2018 the Council identified the need to deliver self sufficiency
savings of £0.422 million. The required savings were built into the revenue budget and regularly monitored
through the normal budget monitoring process within the Council. Any issues identified were considered
and corrective action taken, or alternative savings identified. Reports to Executive during the course of the
year including the outturn report could include a bespoke section on savings, as current reporting does not
regularly report the progress with savings separately.

Based on this we are
able to conclude that
that the Council has in
place proper
arrangements during
2018/19 for ensuring
they plan finances
effectively to support the
sustainable delivery of
strategic priorities and
using appropriate cost
information to support
informed decision
making

The Council achieved an underspend in 2018/19 of £0.376 million in net expenditure. At the 31 March 2019
total available general reserves were £7.358 million (GF balance of £3.891 million and Earmarked reserves
of £3.467 million). When the 2019/20 budget was agreed on 6 March 2019 £0.372 million in reserves was
identified for use during 2019/20.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter for Allerdale Borough Council | August 2019

9

Value for Money conclusion
How we responded to the risk

Findings and
conclusions

Major re-procurement
exercise
During 2018/19, the
Council completed a major
procurement to retender
for the provision of refuse,
recycling, street cleansing
and grounds maintenance
services. The existing
contracts account for over
40% of the Council’s
annual expenditure.

Our work reviewed the Council's arrangements in place during 2018/19 for the development of the procurement process.
The Council’s existing contracts for refuse, recycling, street cleansing and grounds maintenance ended on 31 March 2019 .
The services were arranged in 4 lots with 3 contractors, with contracts ranging from 3.5 years to 16 years.

The Council has put in place
arrangements to procure the
refuse, recycling, street
cleansing and grounds
maintenance services during
2018/19 due to the contracts
ending on 31 March 2019.

Page 80

Risks identified in
our audit plan

The contract took effect
from 1 April 2019. This is
a significant project for the
Council in terms of
financial scale and the
level of officer, member
and other specialist inputs
required.

The Council formed a Community Services Business Model Project Board to oversee the project. The Council also
established a Community Services Business Model Task and Finish Group to provide feedback on the process to the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The Council’s Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered a report
outlining the results of the service delivery model option appraisal exercise including anticipated affordability target savings
of £1 million from 2019/20 on 21 April 2017. Six possible commissioning approaches were identified.
At the Executive meeting on 10 May 2017 it was agreed that a contractor outsourced option would be chosen and in
August 2017 the Council published an OJEU Contract Notice (Official Journal of the European Union) inviting potential
bidders to register their interest.
The Council procured services within 3 lots with effect from 1 April 2019 to provide:
Lot 1 – waste and recycling collections;
Lot 2 – street cleansing and grounds maintenance services; and
Lot 3 – bulking, hauling and reprocessing of dry recyclables and green waste.
The period of the contracts were for 8 years, with another 8 years extension if required. The Executive awarded the
contracts in each lot on 17 October 2018. When only 1 bidder was left in Lots 1 and 3, the Council added a further layer of
financial information within the requests to enable comparisons by external experts of single bids in lots to be evaluated.
The Council acquired the recycling receptacles and also the waste collection vehicles and delivered the receptables to
households. The refuse vehicles arrived as planned. During the process the Council obtained specialist advice for legal,
financial and technical expertise to aid the procurement process. The budget for the procurement was £0.29 million, and
the outturn report for 2018/19 noted that an overspend of £0.117 million was recorded in addition to the budget, due to
additional costs.

Our opinion in this area is
unqualified.

The Services Agreement for
Lots 1 and Lot 3 remain
unsigned at the date of this
report for services that
commenced on1 April 2019.
The Council continues to
discuss this position with the
contractor including the
negotiation of an interim
agreement and temporary
changes to assist crews in
achieving the required daily
collections.

Whilst, at the date of this report, agreed contractual arrangements are in place for the delivery of services under Lots 1 and
3, the Services Agreements remain unsigned for the services that commenced on 1 April 2019. This is currently being
negotiated by the Council with the contractor, and this is a risk to the Council as a signed contract is not in place. This is
high priority, and the Council are working with the contractor in order to achieve an agreed resolution including the
negotiation of an interim agreement.
Since the contract was introduced the refuse crews have not been able to make it to some properties on the scheduled
day. The Council is working with the contractor and for two months from 8 July 2019 has agreed some temporary changes
to help crews complete the refuse collection rounds whilst more permanent solutions are devised.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter for Allerdale Borough Council | August 2019

10

Value for Money conclusion
How we responded to the risk

Findings and conclusions

Community stadium project
At the planning stage of our work,
the Council considered an outline
business case for the
development of a new community
sports stadium in Workington at
the 16 January 2019 Executive.

We reviewed the Council's arrangements in place for managing the development of the scheme
during 2018/19.

Arrangements were in place
during 2018/19 to provide
information for informed
decision making purposes
regarding the Community
Stadium project.

Page 81

Risks identified in our audit
plan

Options for the site development,
funding, procurement and
management of the proposed
stadium were key factors. This is
a significant project for the
Council in terms of financial scale
and the level of officer, member
and other specialist inputs
required.

The Executive approved the full business case for the new community stadium selecting an
investor/developer route to build the new stadium at a meeting of the Executive on 22 March
2019. This included a detailed assessment of the capital costs and financial model relating to
the stadium. The stadium plans allowed space for rented accommodation and a NHS building,
the income from tenants being key to the financial sustainability of the development.
In March 2019, the Council won the right to host 3 games in the Rugby League World Cup in
2021. The approval of the new stadium was expected to be a crucial factor in securing the
hosting opportunity.
During the process the Council obtained specialist advice from legal, financial and technical
expertise to aid the business planning process. Challenge was provided by experts in relation
to the assumptions, the information to establish the cost and income streams, tax implications,
legal implications, governance arrangements and operating model.
The Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 11 April 2019 ‘called in’ the decision with
three elements of the call in referred to the Executive for further consideration.

Our opinion in this area is
unqualified.

In June 2019 the Executive of
the Council reversed the
previous decision from March
2019 to approve the full
business case, therefore work
is on-going at the Council to
work through the implications
of this decision.

Local elections were held during May 2019 and the first meeting of the new Executive was
held on 28 June 2019. At that meeting the decision was taken to continue looking into the
business case for a new stadium but in doing so, reduce the size and scale of the
specification.
On 4 July 2019 the Council notified the Rugby League World Cup of their withdrawal as a host
in the 2021 World Cup.

The 2018/19 financial statements include costs of £1.159 million incurred on the stadium
project, which includes the Lonsdale Park land purchase.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter for Allerdale Borough Council | August 2019

11

A. Reports issued and fees
We confirm below our final reports issued and fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non-audit services.
Reports issued
Report

Date issued

Audit Plan

13 February 2019

Page 82

Audit Findings Report

22 July 2019

Annual Audit Letter

2 August 2019

Reason

Assessing the
impact of the
McCloud ruling

The Government’s transitional arrangements
1,500
for pensions were ruled discriminatory by the
Court of Appeal last December. The Supreme
Court refused the Government’s application for
permission to appeal this ruling. As part of our
audit we have reviewed the revised actuarial
assessment of the impact on the financial
statements along with any audit reporting
requirements.

Fees

Statutory audit
Total fees

Planned
£
37,059
37,059

Actual fees
£
41,559
41,559

Audit fee variation
As outlined in our audit plan, the 2018/19 scale fee published by PSAA
of £37,059 assumes that the scope of the audit does not significantly
change. There were two areas where the scope of the audit changed,
which led to additional work. These are set out in the following table.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter for Allerdale Borough Council | August 2019

Fee
proposed

Area

Value for Money As part of our work we have reviewed
Conclusion
specific value for money risks for the major
risks
re-procurement exercise and the Stadium
project that were additional and complex
when compared to the assumed number of
risks within the base fee for a council of this
size.

3,000

Total

4,500

Fee variations are subject to PSAA approval.

12

Page 83
© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member
firms, as the context requires.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter for Allerdale Borough Council | August 2019
grantthornton.co.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84

Audit Progress Report

28 August 2019

Agenda Item 8

Page 85

Allerdale Borough Council
Year ending 31 March 2020

Contents
Section

Page 86
© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Page

Introduction

3

Progress at 28 August 2019

4

Audit Deliverables

5

Audit Progress Report | August 2019

2

Introduction

Engagement Lead

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report on progress in
delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors.

T 0161 234 6384
E John.Farrar@uk.gt.com

Members of the Audit Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we have a section dedicated
to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications www.grantthornton.co.uk .

John Farrar

Page 87

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to
receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or
Engagement Manager./
Angela Pieri
Engagement Manager
T 0141 223 0887
E angela.l.pieri@uk.gt.com

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Audit Progress Report | August 2019

3

Progress at August 2019
2018/19 Financial Statements and
Value for Money

Page 88

We have completed our audit of the Council's 2018/19
financial statements. Our audit opinion, including our
value for money conclusion and certificate of audit
closure was issued on the 26 July 2019.
We issued:
•

An unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial
statements; and

•

An unqualified value for money conclusion on the
Council’s arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We have issued all our deliverables for 2018/19 and
have concluded our work on the 2018/19 financial year.
Our Annual Audit Letter, summarising the outcomes of
our audit is included as an agenda item at the Audit
Committee on 12 September 2019.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

2019/20 Financial Statements Audit
We will be commencing our audit planning, and our Audit
Plan will set out our proposed approach to the audit of the
Council's 2019/20 financial statements. We will present our
Audit Plan to the Audit Committee on 18 February 2020.
Our detailed work and audit visits will begin later in the year
and we will discuss the timing of these visits with
management. In the meantime we will:
•

continue to hold regular discussions with management to
inform our risk assessment for the 2019/20 financial
statements and value for money audits;

•

review minutes and papers from key meetings; and

•

continue to review relevant sector updates to ensure that
we capture any emerging issues and consider these as
part of audit plans.

2019/20 Value for Money
The scope of our work is set out in the guidance issued
by the National Audit Office. The Code requires auditors
to satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources".
The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as: "in all
significant respects, the audited body had proper
arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned
and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local
people".
The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give
a conclusion overall are:
•Informed decision making

Our interim fieldwork will include:

•Sustainable resource deployment

•

updating our understanding of the Council’s control
environment;

•Working with partners and other third parties

•

updating our understanding of the Council’s significant
financial systems;

•

reviewing Internal Audit reports on core financial
systems;

•

early work on emerging accounting issues; and

•

early substantive testing.

We will be commencing our initial risk assessment to
determine our approach. The approach will be reported
in our Audit Plan.

Audit Progress Report | August 2019

4

Audit Deliverables
2019/20 Deliverables

Planned Date

Status

Fee Letter

April 2019

Complete

February 2020

Not yet due

June 2020

Not yet due

July 2020

Not yet due

July 2020

Not yet due

August 2020

Not yet due

Confirming audit fee for 2019/20.
Accounts Audit Plan

Page 89

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Audit Committee setting out our proposed
approach in order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2019/20 financial statements. We will also report the
findings of our initial value for money risk assessment.
Interim Audit Findings
We will report to you the findings from our interim audit within our Progress Report.
Audit Findings Report
The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the July Audit Committee.
Auditor’s Report
This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion.
Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Audit Progress Report | August 2019

5

Page 90
© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement
and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly
for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP.

grantthornton.co.uk

